
Page 1 of 5 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE CHICO AREA 
RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

2565 California Park Drive, Chico, CA 95928 
MINUTES 

         January 21, 2015 
 
 
 

Board Members Present:  Jan Sneed, Chair 
 Herman Ellis, Vice Chair 
 Tom Lando, Board Member 
 Michael Worley, Board Member 
 Bob Malowney, Board Member 
 
Staff Members Present: Jerry Haynes, General Manager 
 Roger Swanson, Interim Business Manager  
 Jake Preston, Superintendent of Parks and Facilities 
 Robert Hinderer, Superintendent of Recreation & Com Services 
 Jennifer Marciales, Executive Assistant  
 
1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
1.1 Roll Call 
 

The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m., and roll call was taken as noted above.  
Director Ellis arrived at 7:03 p.m.  
 

2.0 APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
2.1 Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of December 18, 2014 
 

M/S/C/ (Directors Lando/Worley) that the Board of Directors approves the minutes 
as presented.  
 
The vote was as follows: Ayes carried 
Ayes: Sneed, Lando, Worley, Malowney 
Noes: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: Ellis   
 

3.0 CORRESPONDENCE 
 There was no correspondence 

 
4.0 PUBLIC COMMENTS 

There were no public comments.    
 

5.0 PRESENTATIONS 
 There were no presentations.  
 



Page 2 of 5 

 

6.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
 There were no items on the consent agenda.  
 
7.0     REGULAR AGENDA 
     No items were removed from the consent agenda 
 
8.0 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 There was no Unfinished Business.   
 
9.0 NEW BUSINESS  
9.1 CARD Master Plan Review 
 

Chair Sneed began the discussion by stating that this meeting is the first step in 
discussing the Master Plan.  She noted that the Master Plan document is policy and 
under the control of the Board of Directors.   

 
General Manager Haynes stated that if the Board would like to update or make any 
modifications or changes to the Master Plan, the District would need to hire a consultant 
to do so.   

 
 Chair Sneed opened the discussion for public comment. 
 

Jerry Hughes addressed the Board and provided a report outlining an inventory of park 
and recreation amenities in Chico.  He stated that he planned to provide it at the next 
Aquatic Facility Advisory Committee meeting, but since there are no scheduled 
meetings, he stated that he would like to provide it to the Board now for review.  Mr. 
Hughes noted that an amenity that is missing in this document is an aquatic center.  He 
noted that it has been a year and a half since the Aquatic Facility Advisory Committee 
commenced, and he feels the District should proceed with an aquatic center.  Mr. 
Hughes requested that he be placed on the Agenda for the Regular Board Meeting in 
February to present some issues to the Board.  Chair Sneed requested that staff include 
Mr. Hughes on the Agenda for the Regular Board Meeting in February 2015.   

 
Director Lando stated that he feels a stadium is needed in this community.  He 
suggested that a committee be appointed to review Board comments and 
compile/prioritize information.   

 
Director Malowney stated that the current Master Plan provides a great inventory, but 
nothing has been done in 6 years.  He stated that the District needs to review options 
of increasing funds for park development and recreation activities.  He suggested that 
the District work with the County and the City to see how this can be accomplished.   

 
Director Lando stated that the impact fees adopted in the Master Plan are unrealistic.  
 
Director Ellis stated that it is time to update the Master Plan, and he agrees with forming 
an Ad Hoc Committee.   
 



Page 3 of 5 

 

Director Worley stated that he feels the District needs to reach out to the citizens and 
see what types of facilities they would want.  He also stated that he feels the facilities 
need to be dispersed throughout the District’s sphere of influence.   
 
The consensus of the Board was to form an Ad Hoc Committee to meet with staff and 
begin the ground work for updating the Master Plan and begin researching possible 
consultants to assist with the update.  Chair Sneed appointed Director Lando and 
Director Malowney to a Master Plan Ad Hoc Committee, with Director Worley serving as 
an alternate.  Chair Sneed requested that the Committee provide an update to the Board 
on a monthly basis.      
 
Lenore Bolton addressed the Board and stated that she is an advocate for an off leash 
dog area in Chico.  She stated that the committee she formed has done a lot of work in 
the last 6 months, and she would like the Board to consider adding an off leash dog 
park to the Master Plan.  Director Lando asked Ms. Bolton how many acres she feels is 
needed for an off leash dog park, and Ms. Bolton stated that 3 to 4 acres would be 
sufficient, along with a separation of small and large dogs.  She noted that she received 
55 signatures of people wanting another dog park in Chico.  She further informed the 
Board that a second fundraising event will be held in February at Trail Blazers and will 
include a pet photo shoot for Valentine’s Day.  Director Lando asked if the committee 
she has been working with has a location in mind, and Ms. Bolton stated that an ideal 
location would be in the mid to south end of town.   
 
Director Lando stated that the Intergovernmental Committee met with the City of Chico 
to discuss possible locations, but has not heard back from the City.  
 
Ms. Bolton requested that this item be placed on the Agenda for the February meeting 
for further discussion.   
 
Chair Sneed requested that staff review possible locations and follow up with the City 
of Chico to see if they have completed their inventory review, and if they have any 
potential locations to be considered.  Chair Sneed requested that this information be 
provided at the next Board Meeting.    
 
Linda addressed the Board and stated that people are reluctant to donate money 
because they are uncertain if the funds will go to a dog park. 

 
Lori addressed the Board and stated that Merium Park could be considered as a viable 
option. 

 
Iris McNeal addressed the Board and stated that she is the owner of two therapy dogs.  
She stated that exercise is extremely important for dogs, and in the summer, people 
are not able to access Bidwell Park because of the conditions.  She stated that people 
need an area where they can truly exercise their dogs, and suggested that a zig zag 
design be considered.   
 
 



Page 4 of 5 

 

9.2 Board Committee Assignments 
 
 Chair Sneed appointed members of the Board to serve on District Committees as follows:  

a. Finance Committee: Ellis/Malowney (Alternate - Sneed)  
b. Intergovernmental Committee: Sneed/Lando (Alternate – Ellis)  
c. Skate Park Ad Hoc Committee: Worley/Sneed (Alternate – Malowney)  
d. Aquatic Facility Advisory Ad Hoc Committee: Worley/Malowney  (Alternate – Sneed)  
e. Rose Garden Ad Hoc Committee:  Lando/Ellis (Alternate – Sneed) 
f. Doe Mill Property Ad Hoc Committee: Assigned to Intergovernmental Committee  

 
10.0 BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REPORTS/SPECIAL ASSIGNMENTS  
 
10.1 Intergovernmental Committee 
 Nothing to report.  
 
10.2 Butte County Special Districts Association/LAFCO 
 Nothing to report. 
 
10.3 Other Reports 
 Nothing to report. 
 
10.4 Finance Committee 
 Nothing to report.  

 
11.0 MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS 
11.1   Monthly Bills and Refund Register  
 

M/S/C/ (Directors Ellis/Lando) that the Board of Directors authorizes payment of 
the monthly bills and approves the refund register. 
 
The vote was as follows: Ayes carried 
Ayes: Sneed, Lando, Ellis, Worley, Malowney  
Noes: None 
Abstain: None  
Absent: None 
 

11.2 Monthly Financial Report  
 

M/S/C/ (Directors Ellis/Lando) that the Board of Directors approves the Monthly 
Financial Reports.  
 
The vote was as follows: Ayes carried 
Ayes: Sneed, Lando, Ellis, Worley, Malowney  
Noes: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: None 

 



Page 5 of 5 

 

12.0 DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS      
 

Chair Sneed commented that she wants to make sure that the Board continues to work 
on keeping the budget balanced, and for the Board to keep that in mind when reviewing 
upcoming projects. 

 
13.0 GENERAL MANAGER’S COMMENTS 
13.1 General Manager’s Update 
  

General Manager Haynes informed the Board that staff completed the first round of 
interviews for the Business Manager position.   

 
14.0 STAFF COMMENTS 

Superintendent Hinderer reminded the Board of the upcoming Giants Trophy Tour event 
on January 31, 2015. 
 

15.0 ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business, the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors was 
adjourned at 7:41 p.m. to the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Chico 
Area Recreation and Park District on February 19, 2015. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
 
 

___________________________ 
Jerry Haynes, General Manager 
Secretary to the Board 


